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 Interviewer, Jennie Betts


[0:00:00]

Interviewer:
– properly recording.  I was wondering how you began your involvement with the civil rights movement.
Jennie Betts:
Through college.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  What were like some of the – how did you end up getting interesting in it?

Jennie Betts:
It was through the Democratic Club and the NAACP.  We all – we all was in the same – Democratic was in the NAACP and then Republicans.  We was all together.  Same people, that’s what I’m trying to say.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
That’s what I’ve heard from about everybody I’ve talked to about this network of overlapping leadership and – 

Jennie Betts:
That’s what it was, yeah, overlapping.

Interviewer:
– membership and so forth.  What I’m looking at in particular is for my Masters thesis is the 1959 – 
[0:01:00]

– city election in which, you undoubtedly know, Russell Sugarmon ran for office.
Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Did you have any involvement with that campaign at all?

Jennie Betts:
I worked in the campaign.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, okay.  What did you do?

Jennie Betts:
I went from door to door canvassing, passed out his literature for him.  And we met practically every day at the headquarters.

Interviewer:
Oh, so you had daily meetings at the headquarters?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, daily meetings at the headquarters and then we’d come in at night, the night gang, and we’d look over – we had maps, see what part of the ______ we hadn’t covered.

Interviewer:
Oh, um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
We walked, we didn’t ride, we walked.

Interviewer:
Wow, wow.  

Jennie Betts:
The election was very close.

Interviewer:
Pardon?

Jennie Betts:
It was a very close election.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  What else do you remember about the election?
[0:02:00]
Jennie Betts:
What else?  Well, I remember about that election, Mr. Sugarmon ran for one office and then the Reverend Roy Love ran for the Board of Education.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
And I know those two ran.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Yes, and later on A.W. Willis ran for legislature.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
And he won.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I don’t believe – it wasn’t in ’59, I think it was in ’60.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  Were there a lot of women involved with the electoral activity?  What was the – 

Jennie Betts:
It was a lot of women’s – we was – lots of women’s campaign, women’s were very involved in the campaign process.  But now, women’s are running.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

[0:03:00]
Jennie Betts:
They running for office themselves.

Interviewer:
Right. 

Jennie Betts:
But at that time we was more or less pushing our mens.

Interviewer:
Oh, um-hum, um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
And as a result, Mr. Sugarmon pushed those of us that wanted to run for an office, he pushed us.

Interviewer:
He pushed the women to run?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, he was very – he was a good – Russell was a good person.  He really pushed lots of ladies.

Interviewer:
Um-hum, yeah, did some end up running for office?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, some one.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
Because Maxine served the Board 20-some years.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
Yes, and Minerva Jonathan served on the County Commissioner.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  You know is she still living?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, she is.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Someone I wanted to see about interviewing as well.

Jennie Betts:
Yes, she’s still living.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
______ ______.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I know –

[0:04:00]


– her telephone number.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  Well, later on?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  You talked about a difference between women’s and men’s roles where women at that time were supporting the men who were running and didn’t run themselves.  Were there any other differences in terms of what activities were done with the campaign?

Jennie Betts:
It was lots of difference between we was completely segregated.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That was the beginning of breaking down segregation.

Interviewer:
The – what was the beginning?

Jennie Betts:
When Mr. Sugarmon ran, that’s the first time blacks ______ ______ against a white person.

Interviewer:
Right.

Jennie Betts:
And later on, I think in the fall, like April or May, that’s when the sit-in movements broke out.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
And then we was running.  It was quite interesting.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I was real young then and very excited, wasn’t scared of nothing.  
[0:05:00]


It was a bunch of students.  The sit-in movements was more or less scheduled around the college student.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Now, we had some adults was in the sit-in movements like Lorraine Thomas, C.J. Washington was in it, Miss Wheeler, she was in it, Ida Burchfield was in it, Elizabeth Russell, some of these people they – that’s not very many of us left.  I was young.  I was what you call young, real young then.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And so I’m not young anymore, but I was young at that time.

Interviewer:
Were you involved with the ______?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, I was involved in sitting-in.  I loved that.  Johnnie Turner was in the sit-in movement also, the Executive Director of the metric branch NAACP.
[0:06:00]
Interviewer:
Johnnie Rogers Turner?

Jennie Betts:
Right.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Were you one of the first group of students who sat in?
Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Wow, so you went to the – could you talk about that?

Jennie Betts:
Well, yes, I can talk about it.  I was very excited, very hot tempered.  I’m still hot tempered but Mr. Sugarmon done moved me off of the sit-in and made me a reporter.

Interviewer:
Oh, really?  [Laughter]
Jennie Betts:
I remember that well.  [Laughter] And they made me a reporter, because what the reporters did was like when you got – when they picked them up I’d go call and tell them they done picked them up.

Interviewer:
Oh, I see.  So you were an observer.

Jennie Betts:
I was – made me an observer because I was too hot tempered.

[Laughter]

[0:07:00]

They’d tell us to be non-violent, I was almost – I wanted to fight when it got tough, you know?

Interviewer:
Right.

Jennie Betts:
But I stuck with it.

Interviewer:
How – what was – I understand Marion Barry was also involved with ______ ______?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, he was, um-hum.

Interviewer:
Now, maybe you can clear this up for me but what was his role with it?  Did he inspire you to sit in or I’ve read different – it’s really unclear in the literature exactly what his role is.

Jennie Betts:
Well, Marion Barry did not inspire me, I inspired myself.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
I admire what he did, but – 

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
– to me he was just a student.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, so he was just a student at Le Moyne at that time?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
And – but had he had non-violent training workshops at all at – in Nashville?

Jennie Betts:
Perhaps he have.  Mr. Sugarmon would be more aware of that, but –

[0:08:00]


– I do remember him.

Interviewer:
Okay.  He was just like any other person you ______ ______?

Jennie Betts:
To me he was just a student.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
That’s the way I looked at him.

Interviewer:
So he didn’t have any sort of leadership role with – 

Jennie Betts:
He was a leader now, I don’t know – 

Interviewer:
He was – 

Jennie Betts:
– where he got it from, but he was a leader.

Interviewer:
– a leader in the sit-in?

Jennie Betts:
He was a leader in his own rights.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Okay?  Because we did exactly what – because H.T. Locker was our lawyers, Ben Hooks, Russell Sugarmon and A.W. Wills.  We did what they – we was told to what they instruct us to do, but as I told you earlier, I didn’t do what they told me to do so they had to move me outside because I was a little hot tempered.

Interviewer:
Was there an incident that caused them to move you?

Jennie Betts:
Nothing – a white gentleman placed – put his – I had a coat –

[0:09:00]


– and he put his cigarette out on my coat and that’s when I flew up.
Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
When they got me quiet, they moved me.

Interviewer:
Did you hit him back?

Jennie Betts:
No, I didn’t hit him back, I told him he did it again I was.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, and they moved you because of that.

Jennie Betts:
And took a state – I think I said I was gonna hit him and then if he had hit me I was gonna hit him back.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
If he had did it again.  And they knew I meant it, so they moved me.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Did they do that with all – were there other students who had similar experiences to yours that they moved because – 

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Okay, yeah.  Did it ever happen that somebody did end up hitting somebody back or retaliate?
Jennie Betts:
No, didn’t nobody – just ______ ______, nobody hit anyone.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
But ______ ______.  We didn’t want – they didn’t want it like – I could understand that, they didn’t want it like what – it wouldn’t have been successful if it – had I hit him back.  Wouldn’t nobody – 
[0:10:00]


– I’d have felt better but it wouldn’t help the movement any.

Interviewer:
Right.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Sure.  And I understand it was for like 18 months that there was this Freedom Movement.

Jennie Betts:
It was, and then did anyone tell you about the Black Monday’s?

Interviewer:
A little bit but, you know, I’m interested in hearing what your story is with that.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.  We had the Black Monday’s; I don’t know how many weeks that went out.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
That’s what led into blacks on the School Board.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  Were you – well, at that time you were a teacher in the schools.

Jennie Betts:
Well, could have been but by that time when that broke down I was – had – I was married and I had a child.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
And I stayed home with my child at the request of my husband.  
[0:11:00]


He did not want the child in a daycare center, or no one else seeing after him.  So I had to stay home until he got kind of up.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  Was he – okay, so he was too young, your child, to have been in the school system at the time of – 

Jennie Betts:
Oh, no, he wasn’t in the school system at that time.

Interviewer:
Yeah, about the Black Monday’s.

Jennie Betts:
But he was in the school system by the time we got busing, busing came.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
He was I guess about 2nd grade or something like that.

Interviewer:
Yeah, what was your view of busing?

Jennie Betts:
At that time I felt that was the only thing we could do because the courts had said to the powers to be to desegregate the schools and they wouldn’t do it.  And so the judge had no other choice but to do what he did.  That was ordered, Judge McRae to order busing.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

[0:12:00]
Jennie Betts:
And I had – did what they asked them to do we would have never had busing.  But right now as I see busing, I’m still not a – they – we said, “neighborhood school.”  We don’t have another neighborhood school, neighborhood schools are done.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because the closest just around here you don’t see a – it’s not a neighborhood school, they a good piece.  I would – just not neighborhood schools anymore.  Some children’s like down Shelby Drive to get well, where’s the neighborhood school there?  Just gonna have to bus them, and they busing them for Cottonwood.


Still, busing is here to stay.  I hate to say it, but it’s here.  But I was bused all the time to school because I was raised in rural.

Interviewer:
You were what?

Jennie Betts:
I was bused to –

[0:13:00]


– school and they are still being bused.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Even where I came from.  I was used to busing, so it wasn’t no problem with me.  I think the people that was reared in the city had more problem with busing than I had with it because they had been used to walking to school.

Interviewer:
Oh, right.

Jennie Betts:
And I wasn’t used to walking to school.  I was on the bus.

Interviewer:
Yeah, so do you see the decline of neighborhood schools as a thing that isn’t good about busing?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, and no.  It may have been – as I look at it now, I have mixed feelings about it.  I don’t think busing brought – it may have – may or may not, but busing I don’t think declined, because as we moved – see, the Open House Law –

[0:14:00]


– in 1964, we all started moving – we moving out because here it wasn’t anything here but whites years ago that – there wasn’t in this neighborhood, and now it’s only one child on this street.

Interviewer:
Who’s white?

Jennie Betts:
No.

Interviewer:
Or who’s black?

Jennie Betts:
Black.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
We are – grown, our children’s are grown, my children are grown, his children are grown, these don’t have any.  And they just have the one boy.  But we still have some white neighbors here.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Have a lawyer down the street, Mr. – Attorney Pratcher.  He’s a white lawyer.  And the ______ he has a florist company, he right around the corner on ______.

[0:15:00]
Interviewer:
So this is an integrated neighborhood now?

Jennie Betts:
Somewhat, yeah.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
So I just really think as it – now I moved over here, they holler White Flight.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But I watched as the whites left, there was a white right over there.  He left when the lady – when he died, that’s when the children’s came in and sold the house and they was from Atlanta, other places, and I can understand that, them not living here.  Down the street a man, he died.  His children came in, sold his house.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Down there where you see that house sold, that –

[0:16:00]


– I could understand that guy, he left.  His wife – his son committed suicide, then his wife committed suicide.  He just said to us he couldn’t take anymore –
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
– in that house.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And so he sold it.  I think I would do the same thing.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  So it sounds like in this neighborhood there were a lot of personal reasons for people leaving.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, they all – so when the house fall to their children, after I’m gone, my son he’s not gonna live here, he’s gonna sell this house.  See, I know that.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  Yeah.  What – with the sit-in movement you became a reporter.  With the sit-ins were there people of all economic levels and participating in them?
Jennie Betts:
You mean Caucasians and blacks?

Interviewer:
Well, in –

[0:17:00]


– terms of the black community participating in the sit-in movement.  Was it all different economic levels like poor, middle class?

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was poor and middle class.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
And the Catholic was very heavy in the movement.

Interviewer:
What was heavy?

Jennie Betts:
The Catholic.

Interviewer:
Catholics?

Jennie Betts:
Priests, ______.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
Father.  They was very heavy because the Catholics never been scared to come out.

Interviewer:
Was this white or black Catholics or both?

Jennie Betts:
White Catholic.

Interviewer:
Okay. 

Jennie Betts:
It was both, yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Yeah, I interviewed – do you know Ann Schaeffer?
Jennie Betts:
Oh, yeah, Ann Schaeffer – they never been afraid.
Interviewer:
Yeah, I interviewed her and she talked about how her Catholic faith inspired her to be involved with civil rights activities –

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yeah.

Interviewer:
– and so forth.  And she actually was the only white person –

[0:18:00]


– who I’ve interviewed who voted for the black candidates in the 1959 election.

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yeah, she worked with us, too.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
She was with the black women’s, we was all together.  Yes, I hadn’t seen Ann in a good while.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah, she’s really nice.  Were you involved as like with the Democratic Club, did you have any sort of leadership role in the Democratic Club?  Were you a Precinct Leader at all?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, I was Assistant Precinct Leader in 14-2.
Interviewer:
Assistant Precinct Leader?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay, what were your responsibilities as Precinct Leader?

Jennie Betts:
To go from door to door and make sure that the voters know that there was an election which that’s not going on now, pass the literature, be a – make them aware that it’s gonna be an election going on.


And if I could I would ask some of them to place the –

[0:19:00]


– yard sign in the yard.  They did that.  And I feel now we not as – the voters not as educated as they were then.  We educated the voters back then.  I haven’t had a candidate to come to my door.

Interviewer:
Now in terms of elections?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, and we gonna have one just about a month from here.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And just haven’t had – they’re not talking it up, nobody talking nothing.  We had a forum at the NAACP yesterday.  They’re not talking about the election.  The candidates they – I guess they think they have it made.  But that wasn’t back in ’59.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And ’59, the ‘60s, the ‘70s, in the ‘80s, that wasn’t a day.  That came in more or less the 21st Century.

Interviewer:
That what?

Jennie Betts:
That – you just don’t hear – 

[0:20:00]


– a candidate more or less in the later years.  No campaign going on.  We had Coke parties.  And that was one of my jobs to see to get a Coke party here, there, in the neighborhood so the candidate could get some people to – when you have a Coke party we’d also get some people to be in the home for the – so the candidate can come talk to them.
Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because I even had Coke parties in my home.

Interviewer:
Oh, did you?

Jennie Betts:
And I hadn’t had a Coke party in my home, I don’t know, since in the ‘70s.

Interviewer:
Oh, yeah. 

Jennie Betts:
I hadn’t had one since I’ve been here.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
No one has asked me.  

Interviewer:
So you’ve observed a real decline in the amount of – 

Jennie Betts:
Yes, of interest.  They’re not interested anymore.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Why do you think that is that people aren’t interested anymore?

Jennie Betts:
I really don’t think they understand.
[0:21:00]


One thing about it, peoples will not training their children as we – I trained mines.  Children don’t know anything about elections and the Mama don’t know anything about elections.


Because people ask you, “What election we having?  What are we voting for now?”  We’ve got a very important election.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I hate it, but that’s the way it is.  We going backwards.
Interviewer:
How – so how widespread would you say back in the ‘50s and the ‘60s was the community interest in elections?
Jennie Betts:
The whole community was – the black community was interested in election.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And what I – when we started moving out, we could move where we wanted to move, that’s when I saw the interest declining.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
Because when we was in one –

[0:22:00]


– segment of the city people was very interested.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But they don’t seem to be interested now.

Interviewer:
So that’s been something that – well, the movement away has broken up, the unity. 

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, the unity.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  So you could – one of the things you could attribute the unity to as living close to each other.

Jennie Betts:
Right.

Interviewer:
What else could you attribute the unity to in elections?

Jennie Betts:
Everybody knew each other.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
It was good community – communication.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
And see, in that time everybody knew Russell Sugarmon.  Everybody know Ben Hooks, and right now if you ask the, I’d say young adults, “Who is –

[0:23:00]


– Russell Sugarmon?”  My son would know him, he know him through me.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But they don’t know him.  And Jesse Turner, he’s deceased now but he has a son – a bright son coming on.  But now he know because his daddy was there and mother was there.  But I just don’t – 
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I’m sorry, but we are declining, have declined.  

Interviewer:
Who were some of the other main leaders of the movement back then in the late-‘50s and ‘60s?

Jennie Betts:
Jesse Turner, Jesse Turner, Sr., I think you had Fred Davis.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Melvin Robinson, he’s deceased, Ida Burchfield –

[0:24:00]


– George Holloway, these are all – Ida Burchfield is living but George Holloway’s deceased.
Interviewer:
The last two people you mentioned, what were their roles?  What did they do?  George Holloway, what – 

Jennie Betts:
George Holloway was a labor leader.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
And he touched lots of people’s, and therefore he could – he was with the labor movement.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And he could more or less run his – they listened to him, and he was a leader.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  Yeah.  He was black?

Jennie Betts:
He was black.

Interviewer:
Okay.  

Jennie Betts:
And Melvin Robinson was an insurance agent, manager, for North Carolina Mutual.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, okay.  And what about Ida Burchfield?

Jennie Betts:
Ida Burchfield more or less she stayed in the –

[0:25:00]


– office, but she was heavy in the Binghamton area.
Interviewer:
In the what?

Jennie Betts:
Binghamton area. 

Interviewer:
Oh, Binghamton area.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
And she had a lots of pull out there, and we talk about now how that has declined.
Interviewer:
Were these people all involved with the Democratic Club and the NCCAP?

Jennie Betts:
All of them was involved Democratic Club, NAACP.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That was a club.

Interviewer:
Yeah, sure, sure.

Jennie Betts:
And I forget what Mr. ______ name was, he’s dead now.

Interviewer:
What were you hoping to achieve through the political activity?

Jennie Betts:
I was hoping to make Memphis better, but, you know, in a sense it made it better and in some sense I think it made it worse.

Interviewer:
What do you mean by that?

[0:26:00]

Jennie Betts:
I guess just because I’m disgusted because the youngsters not involved as I was involved.  They don’t seem to be interested, that’s what’s bothering me.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
They won’t go vote.  We register them and we – somehow or another we hadn’t got them educated on voting.  They’re too apathetic when it comes to voting.

Interviewer:
So you think in that sense things have gotten worse?  But how – you said but you were trying to make Memphis better and that in some ways that worked.  How did that end up working?
Jennie Betts:
It led us to – we did it, we was able to motivate them to come out and vote for our first black Mayor, that – and that was – I credit that to the –
[0:27:00]


– he had been Superintendent of Schools, he stayed there long enough to – lots of the young peoples like my son was – that’s all they was interested in, “Going to vote for my Superintendent.”

But now we’re getting people from out of the city, they don’t know anything about him.  So I don’t – because the last Superintendent – the Superintendent that we have now, I know her.  I knew her from Brownsville.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
Knew her family.  The other one I did not know her.
Interviewer:
Is – let’s see here, is Henning near Brownsville?

Jennie Betts:
Henning is near Covington.  You know where Covington is?

Interviewer:
No, I don’t.

Jennie Betts:
Well, Henning is about 25 miles east of –
[0:28:00]


– it’s on the east side –
Interviewer:
Okay.  

Jennie Betts:
– of 51.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
Brownsville’s not that far, about 25 miles from Henning.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Because we all communicated together.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Those small towns.

Interviewer:
Right.  Okay.  I’ve heard – yeah, really bad stories about Brownsville.

Jennie Betts:
It’s pretty bad.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Was Henning also that way in – or – 

Jennie Betts:
It was different.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  Back then you said that a goal of the electoral activity was to make Memphis better.  How were you hoping to do that?  What do you mean by that?

Jennie Betts:
I was hoping to make it better –

[0:29:00]


– by black and whites working together, going to school together, living in the same neighborhood, that’s what I was hoping for.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because we do have some parts of the world it is like that.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
Like in Wisconsin my husband went to school in Wisconsin.  He went – and he never had a black teacher, he told me, until he came to Memphis.  All his teachers were white.


And I had a chance to visit the little town and they are still integrated.  I was wondering how come we in the south couldn’t be integrated like – 

Interviewer:
Up in the north?

Jennie Betts:
– the north.  That’s what I was wondering about.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
I wondered how come the south had to choose to be segregated.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  And so you were hoping through the electoral activity to break that segregation?

Jennie Betts:
Break the segregation barrier down there, that’s what I was hoping for.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  And you said –
[0:30:00] 
Jennie Betts:
In some senses it has.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because we are in an organization, because I know the – I’m in the – I’ve joined the Retired Teachers Association.  They have two, they have a black one and they have a white one, but they have a black and white – I joined the – I chose the black and white one, rather than the black.  


They asked me to join, I said, “No, if I join the black one I would be defeating my purpose all these years.”

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
I said, “I want to be with the black and white.”  And that’s the one I’m in.

Interviewer:
So that’s how it exists right now that there’s a black one and a white one and a black and white?

Jennie Betts:
We gonna pull them all out.  We gonna get them.

Interviewer:
You’re gonna make sure it gets – 

Jennie Betts:
We’ve asked them constantly, “Come on, let’s go ahead and join over here with the – join with you coworkers.”

Interviewer:
That’s bizarre that that’s still – 

[0:31:00]
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, they – 

Interviewer:
– going on like that.

Jennie Betts:
But I didn’t want it.  I retired in May, which was last month, and I joined the black and white association.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  How – you mentioned that one of your jobs was to educate people about elections, about the candidates.  How did you do that?
Jennie Betts:
I would go to the house.  They would ask me to come.  They would get a group of people’s in from the neighborhood like a Coke party, and I would go and talk to them about the candidate and I’d bring the candidate with me.
Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
And let him talk, too. 

Interviewer:
Right.

Jennie Betts:
Rather than just listen to what I have to say.  And so that worked quite well.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
The reason I said worked well, because I was able to get workers –

[0:32:00]


– out of that group to come help us.
Interviewer:
Oh, out of the people you visited you also not only educated but recruited people.

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Okay.  

Jennie Betts:
Some would say, “Well, how can I do what you are doing?”

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And I told him what they are to do, and so they did it.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
Politics is very – it’s lots of fun.  Politics – people say politics is nasty, it’s what you make it.  It is not nasty.  You can be a true politician like anything else.  But I’ll tell you right now I don’t go from the ______.  I shake my head on you, man, if I see that – I feel that something is not right.  I don’t take money under the table and I don’t take money for – when I work – if I’m working for you I work for you.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
I don’t take money.

Interviewer:
Did people in – 
[0:33:00]

– I’ve heard from talking to another person that she said that people in the white community tried to – and even white candidates, buy votes from her or put pressure on her.  Did you run into similar things?
Jennie Betts:
Yes.  Yeah, they would do – it would be like that when you – if they know you are a leader they’ll try to buy votes from you, get you to do this for them.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But you have to say no.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
You have to – don’t sell your integrity for nothing.

Interviewer:
Right, right.  And what sort of response did you get from these white people who are trying to influence you when you told them no?

Jennie Betts:
They went on, they left me alone, but they didn’t bother me anymore.  They just went on to somebody else.

Interviewer:
Did you experience any threats or harassment for your – with your work?

[0:34:00]
Jennie Betts:
I got a few of them.  Because when I lived – not in this home, I got – I went out and they had burned a cross in my yard.

Interviewer:
Oh.  When was this?

Jennie Betts:
That was in the ‘70s.

Interviewer:
Okay.  
Jennie Betts:
And they had filled my mailbox with – full of sugar.

Interviewer:
In the ‘70s, too?

Jennie Betts:
Yes.  But that didn’t scare me.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Let’s see, what did people – another person I interviewed said that there was resentment in the black community to Sugarmon and some of the other leaders because they had a middle class background.

[0:35:00]
Jennie Betts:
That is correct.

Interviewer:
Okay, if you could talk about that.

Jennie Betts:
It was resentment to, of course, their middle class background, and it was our job to educate them or let them know that they’re just trying to bring them up where they were.


And I – some of us was able to do that, let them know that, yes, they have a middle class background, but they’re trying to bring you up to middle class.


And we’d just tell them, “Well, come work with us.”  And they became – and that’s how they was able – they was preaching what we preaching.  But they had lots of resentment of their background.


Now, Mr. Sugarmon did have a middle class background.  Mr. Willis had a middle –

[0:36:00]


– class background.  But that’s the way it was.  What I call that more or less it was just – I use the word resentment but I call it jealousy.

Interviewer:
Oh, um-hum.  Sure, sure.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, that’s what it was.

Interviewer:
That’s a better description.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  Yeah, I think it’s really something how just like that still that you had such unified votes and were able to get so many people out voting and voting for the same candidates and to hold the power of balance and the – 

Jennie Betts:
See, that’s the one ______ good for, the Ward and Precinct Leaders give you – if you get you some good Ward and Precinct Leaders you could – they can do it.

Interviewer:
They can unify people?

Jennie Betts:
They can unify that precinct and you can – and that was a time we could tell where there was a good Ward and Precinct because look at the turnout.


The same thing though is on now, if there’s a good Ward and Precinct in 48, -

[0:37:00]


– high votes, and it’s not but a black neighborhood.

Interviewer:
And it’s what?

Jennie Betts:
It’s a black neighborhood but it’s high votes.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
So they still have their Civic Club.  They meets every month.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  
Jennie Betts:
Any precinct that meets you’re gonna see the results at election.

Interviewer:
Yeah, how often did your precinct club meet?

Jennie Betts:
We met every Tuesday – every second Tuesday in the month.

Interviewer:
Okay.  And then you also – did you go to the Board meetings of the Democratic Club?

Jennie Betts:
Yes, we met – we went to the Board meeting.  I think we go to the Board meetings on fourth Monday night.

Interviewer:
Okay.  What were the Board meetings like?

Jennie Betts:
We was looking at the next candidate, looking at the next Mayor or next Governor, whatever was coming up.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And we was meeting there, we’d be looking forward –

[0:38:00]


– to the President election.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  And so that’s where – what sort of questions did you ask the candidates who appeared before the club, and how did you decide who to endorse?

Jennie Betts:
We would let them talk first and then we’d pick them apart with the questions.  We let everybody come in, Republican, Democrat, anybody come in to be interviewed, but half the time they was picked apart.


We couldn’t – we never discriminated, but we let everybody come in.  And then after, we’d make our decision who we was gonna vote for, and sometimes the decision was kind of hard who we was gonna endorse, because that person had talked to somebody in our meeting, we could tell it.

Interviewer:
Really?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Wow.  So they were trying – well, you know, it speaks of the influence of the club –

[0:39:00]


– if they were trying to – 

Jennie Betts:
Yes, um-hum.

Interviewer:
– you know, if they were taking those means.  Yeah.
Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Did you face, at all; another person I talked to mentioned about one of her biggest challenges was getting men to follow her.  And did you experience that at all, that it was more difficult to convince men to be involved with the campaigns at all that they maybe didn’t follow your advice because you were a woman?
Jennie Betts:
Well, yes.  They was – that was exactly right.  More or less who was running the – who was doing it.  We had a few mens out, but it was more womens than there were mens –
Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
– that was hitting the precincts, clubs.  And yeah, they would get mad with us.  They didn’t –
[0:40:00]


– they had difficulty following a woman.
Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was very – but we kept on.

Interviewer:
How did you deal with that, with –?
Jennie Betts:
I let them alone.  I know that – we call them chauvinists.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Right, right.  Did they eventually able to follow you or did they – 

Jennie Betts:
They eventually – one time one man was so resentful I gave everybody some literature on how – voting, a ballot and all this, so we’d give a ballot out.  And he said, “You didn’t give me no ballot.”  I told him, “I didn’t intend to give you one since you so resentful, I thought you knew everything.”

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
“Oh, no, you shouldn’t have thought like that.”  I said, “Well, that’s the impression I got.”  He said, “No, I want the ballot.”  I said, “Well, I thought you had your own ballot.”

Interviewer:
Huh.

Jennie Betts:
And so I gave him – I started giving to him, he acted – he started acting different towards me.

[0:41:00]
Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So sometimes you had to be real tough like that and stand up to them and fire back and ______ ______.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, that’s what I had to do.

Interviewer:
Huh.  

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, mens is something else, they are something else.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
Some are, not all mens.

Interviewer:
What about the role of churches in your political work?  How did churches factor in?

Jennie Betts:
The church respected me highly.  Even today churches is looking for me to – bring them a ballot on how to vote.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
If I don’t bring it, they disappointed.  And so I know I’m gonna bring them one.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Had it not been for the church, the church played a major role in the civil rights movement.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
In the voting and all that kind of stuff.
[0:42:00]
Interviewer:
Would the ministers announce who the people in the congregation should vote for during the service?
Jennie Betts:
Some of them did that, but we asked them not to do that.  We told them that wasn’t good for them as a leader.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
Just let the candidates – let them know who running and don’t single out any one of them.

Interviewer:
Huh. 

Jennie Betts:
And so we pretty much got them doing that.

Interviewer:
Just announcing that there was an election?

Jennie Betts:
There was an election and we gonna elect a Mayor, or something like that.  “You know what to do,” use a phrase like that rather than telling the folk to vote for – because some ministers was taking money.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And we know that, we knew it. 

Interviewer:
From white people who were – 

Jennie Betts:
Anybody give them some.
Interviewer:
Anybody would – 

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Who were trying to influence them to – 

Jennie Betts:
Right, influence that – 

Interviewer:
– endorse certain candidates?

Jennie Betts:
Right, um-hum.

[0:43:00]
Interviewer:
Why did you have it that you didn’t want the ministers to endorse certain candidates?
Jennie Betts:
That could hurt their status with the 504, whatever they – 
Interviewer:
Oh, with the tax where they’re not supposed to be political?

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And you can be political but not bipartisan, don’t – 

Interviewer:
Yeah, so when they announce that elections people in the church already knew that they were supposed to get active?  They knew like to contact people like you?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
And just they should get involved with their precinct clubs and so forth.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So – 

Jennie Betts:
Encouraging them to come to the meetings so they can hear it and be educated.

[0:44:00]


Because, you know, church is exempt.  You keep on doing that and the IRS will be on you.

Interviewer:
Right, right.  What about the role of business in campaigns?  You mentioned one of the leaders was involved with the North Carolina Insurance company.  Did business people play an active role?
Jennie Betts:
No, they – all he did just use the folks that was working for him.  They joined in with us, but the company did not.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, okay, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
If happened to have been his place of business, where he’s working.

Interviewer:
Right, yeah, I talked to Fred Davis and he was telling me how he owned an insurance company and then would organize like the insurance policyholders.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, he would organize them to do his – he served also City Council.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And Joe Patterson served, too, Bishop Joe Patterson.

Interviewer:
It was Junior, right –

[0:45:00]
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
– he served?

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.  

Interviewer:
Yeah, sure.

Jennie Betts:
That’s what he did.  Fred Davis was a good Councilman.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  Yeah, I know he’s really well respected by people in the community –
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
– and so forth.

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Were you involved with voter registration efforts at all?
Jennie Betts:
Yes, I am involved now.  I’ve got to go this week.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
I’m gonna work one day this week up here at the store.  We’re still involved – I’m still involved in that.  I’ve been involved in it every year.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
Since we got – we can vote by registered and that bring lots of folks in.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And now we have our young peoples Youth Council involved at the NAACP.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  Sure.  I saw that there was a Youth Council back in the ‘60s as well –

[0:46:00]
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, my – they was good.

Interviewer:
– at the NAACP.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
With – were you involved at all with the Citizens Non-Partisan Registration Committee?
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Was that the vehicle that was used to do voter registration?

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Okay.  It’s my understanding that consisted of people who were involved with the Democratic and Republican Clubs and then with the NAACP.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Okay, and it was – was – and from my understanding from interviews it existed year around but it particularly – people got involved with it during campaigns.  Okay.  

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So – because, well, Russell Sugarmon he said it was an ad hoc committee usually.
Jennie Betts:
It was an ad hoc, it is ad hoc.

Interviewer:
It is ad hoc, okay.  So it was formed during campaigns?

[0:47:00]
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
But then people engaged – so I guess my question is was that committee just solely during campaigns and then – 

Jennie Betts:
Leading up to election, yeah.

Interviewer:
But then there were other people who were involved year around in voter registration efforts.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Okay.
Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah, that’s something that the literature on Memphis and the civil rights movement is pretty sketchy in different places.  So once again we’re – 

[0:48:00]

Yeah.
Jennie Betts:
We still registered.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
We have what you call the Political Action Committee.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

Jennie Betts:
That’s not ad hoc.  We always register people.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  How did you find the time to do all this work?  You were in school then and so forth.  Or how much – maybe a better question would be how much time did you expend on doing all this activity?

Jennie Betts:
After school, after school.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And then when you’re young you can do a lot things.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

[0:49:00]

Jennie Betts:
When you old you can’t do it.  Yeah, I did it after school.  And after I married, and by me just at the house – the home with the kid, I had – pretty much free to do what I wanted to.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah, yeah.  With the Democratic Club Board Meetings, my understanding, too, is that there were issues that like the Russell Sugarmon or others would raise, but they also the Precinct Leaders could put different things on the table that they wanted to discuss.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.
Interviewer:
Would you give me an example of an issue or of something that was talked about in the meeting or what sort of issues were discussed?  I know one of the functions was screening and endorsing candidates.  What were some of the other agenda items?

[0:50:00]

Jennie Betts:
Well, one of the issues was busing.  And that was a hot issue.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because most people didn’t see busing.  But I don’t think – it was an issue but we never took a vote on it.  Our thing was we didn’t need to vote on it because the judge was the one that was gonna decide.

Interviewer:
Oh, right, right.

Jennie Betts:
And that’s what happened.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But most people did not want it because we started busing in the middle of the semester, like January.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
That was a hot issue.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That was one of the hottest issues, busing.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Because there was all sorts of different opinions within the black community.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, different opinions, that’s what it was.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was just didn’t want busing.

[0:51:00]
Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  With the ’59 election what do you remember about the white resistance to the candidacy of blacks?
Jennie Betts:
Well, I didn’t see any resistance, they were scared.
Interviewer:
Yeah – oh?  Huh.

Jennie Betts:
Because they really felt Russell Sugarmon was gonna win, and he almost won, too.

Interviewer:
Yeah, why do you think they were so scared by that possibility?

Jennie Betts:
They just didn’t want to no blacks to hold elections.  That was in the – first blacks holding election in that state, they just didn’t want it.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Yeah.  Why?  Why do you think that was?
Jennie Betts:
They want to keep things like they were.  We couldn’t – we couldn’t sit on the bus, we had to sit at the back.  Get on a bus, that would be –

[0:52:00]


–  one person sitting on a seat all the way back.  We keep ______ from sitting.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And that was an issue, too.  

Interviewer:
Yeah, one of the things I read, because I looked up press coverage of the election was that a lot of whites, at the time, said, “Oh, race relations are so peaceful and harmonious here.”  And, of course, when I looked at the Tri-State Defender, which was saying, “Of course, not,” you know?

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, they did say that.

Interviewer:
You know, why do you think they would say that?  Do you think they really believed that?

Jennie Betts:
I don’t know.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I don’t know what – I don’t know.  I think they knew better but they just was trying to brainwash us.

Interviewer:
What?

Jennie Betts:
Trying to get us to see that it was peaceful.  We didn’t think it was peaceful.  Everything had label was black and white.  Water – water fountain was labeled black, white –

[0:53:00]


– bathrooms labeled black and white.

Interviewer:
Were you involved at all with the 1960 election with the Kennedy – 

Jennie Betts:
Very much so.

Interviewer:
– campaign?  Could you talk about that, what your involvement was and why you were for Kennedy?

Jennie Betts:
Oh, had a good time with the Kennedy campaign. 
Interviewer:
Yeah?

Jennie Betts:
Young, energetic, I went from door to door campaigning, and that Kennedy election was sort of easy because I had a slogan I could use and the folks would believe me.  You know, Goldwater said he was gonna take Social Security away from you.

Interviewer:
Goldwater was?

Jennie Betts:
Goldwater – the ______ out of Goldwater saying he was gonna cut off Social Security.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
And folk didn’t want those Social Security checks cut off.  They came to polls on sticks.

[0:54:00]


That wasn’t – to me Kennedy’s – it was the industry, you didn’t have to do much convincing, just put it out there and they heard on the radio what Goldwater said, they didn’t want their checks cut off.  We didn’t have any problem.
Interviewer:
But Goldwater ran against Johnson in ’64.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, he ran against Johnson.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And Goldwater ran against Kennedy.  That just killed him out.

Interviewer:
Was that in the – because Kennedy ran against Nixon in the 1960 campaign.  So – 

Jennie Betts:
Goldwater ran against Johnson.  That’s what it was, Goldwater ran against Johnson.  That’s – didn’t have any trouble with Johnson, and didn’t have much trouble with Kennedy in – 

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
– with Nixon.  

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was something about Nixon turned folks off.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay. 

Jennie Betts:
I don’t know what it was.

[0:55:00]
Interviewer:
Huh.  Yeah, and I heard from Russell Sugarmon that many of the Precinct Leaders ended up being invited to the inauguration.
Jennie Betts:
Yes, because I was invited.

Interviewer:
Were you?  Wow.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.  I was invited to Clinton’s, too.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
How did you feel about being invited to the Kennedy –

Jennie Betts:
Oh, I felt good.

Interviewer:
– inauguration?  Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Only thing, it takes lots of money to go, but I felt good.  I could keep with Kennedy.  I went to the whole ______ ______ looked at him on television and I gave ______ ______ I was, I got tired.  I couldn’t get ready.

But I was able to keep up with – I couldn’t get with Clinton.  I could keep up with Clinton.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I mean, with President John F. Kennedy, I could keep up with him, I was young ______.

[0:56:00]


But I – every step of the way I was with Kennedy.  And – but the last one I went to I got tired.  I went to the hotel room, looked at the television.  I couldn’t take it.  I couldn’t hang with Bill Clinton.  He’s too – he’s too ______ for me.
Interviewer:
Yeah, now with his memoirs coming out and – 

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.  Yeah, he’s – 

Interviewer:
He loves being in the limelight, for sure.

Jennie Betts:
Oh, the inauguration is nice.  

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
If you get to go, you should always go.

Interviewer:
And I heard that – well, Mr. Sugarmon was telling me that one of the Precinct Leaders ended up going, Drusie Anderson.
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, she did.

Interviewer:
That’s a really special thing.
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, they ______ ______ going.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
My husband just sent me.  I got the invitation; he just went on paid for me to go.

Interviewer:
He what?

Jennie Betts:
My husband paid for me to go.

[0:57:00]
Interviewer:
Oh, so you were there at the inauguration of Kennedy?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
This little widow lady, she didn’t have it, and so they wanted her to go.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay, they raised the money.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
How many Precinct Leaders ended up going to the inauguration?
Jennie Betts:
I don’t know, we had a bus.

Interviewer:
Oh, wow.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah, did Mr. Sugarmon go?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum, yeah, he went.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
He went very unconcerned, very smart.  Smart man.
Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  You said that there was some resentment of the leadership – or jealousy of the leadership.  Would you say though that overall people respected the leadership and thought highly of the leadership?
Jennie Betts:
Oh, wow, yeah, I would say that.  It was some resentment but people would always come and say – 
Interviewer:
Oh, they’d come what?

[0:58:00]
Jennie Betts:
– come by and say – a gentlemen in my church would say, he’d say, “You can say what you will and may,” he called ______ a boy and a girl, he said, “that boy,” he was referring to Mr. Sugarmon, “that boy’s smart.”

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
“And he’s honest.”  

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
“I don’t know what y’all gonna do, but I’m voting for that boy.”

[Laughter]

Oh, how they respected him.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  What did you think of the newspaper coverage at that time of the ’59 campaign and of the civil rights movement?

Jennie Betts:
They didn’t – the newspaper didn’t do a good job of writing what really happened.

Interviewer:
How so?

Jennie Betts:
Like right now they don’t – if you don’t watch it they don’t write what happened.  I pay very little attention to what the newspaper say about – especially a controversial issue.  I like to try to go there, be there for myself so I can get it firsthand because they – 
[0:59:00]

– wouldn’t – they’ll screw your mind up.

Interviewer:
What about the black newspaper?  Was like the Tri-State Defender, Memphis World widely read?
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum, they were pretty much right but they would be – it may be late coming out, but it would be accurate really what happened.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
______ them come out once a week and all that.

Interviewer:
Yeah, were they influential like their editorials and so forth in the community?

Jennie Betts:
Well, they did the best they could do because they didn’t – they was pretty good.  I would prefer reading them, at that time, than reading the ______ ______ and the Commercial Appeal.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  What else did you find that wasn’t right about the Commercial Appeal?  Could you give me like an example where the – 
[1:00:00]


– or the Press ______ of what – of something good that if a black had accomplished something good they’d always put it back there near the death notice section.
Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
And I didn’t think – I thought that ought to be a little up front if you did something good.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
If a black did something bad they’d put it on the front page.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That’s when I stopped my – 

Interviewer:
Okay, yeah, sure.  Yeah, I noticed looking at the Press ______ coverage of the ’59 election, it was so biased and they were really pushing for the white candidate.
Jennie Betts:
They was really pushing.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Yeah, and it was just – the editorial would so often end by saying, you know, “It was a Democratic election.”

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yeah, you made me think of something, yeah, they would say it was a Democratic election, had it not been for the Democrat Club then that wouldn’t have happened.

[1:01:00]


We wasn’t liked too well now.  I’ll tell you just like it is.

Interviewer:
Right, right.  Yeah.  And too, I’ve learned – or what would you say were the intersections among the political and protest activity, if there were any?  What was the relationship like between the political and protest activity?
Jennie Betts:
There was some, but I don’t know.  I was – my thing is Memphis was – I think they woke up one morning to see that we had – the blacks had awakened.  They woke up.
Interviewer:
The blacks did?

Jennie Betts:
Had awakened.  See, Mr. Sugarmon ______ coming back from law school and Mr. Willis and all of them, they came back with the aim to get us together.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I know he perhaps told you –
[1:02:00]


– he may not have told you, but I’m gonna tell you, that we had a Republican Party here, too, and the leader was Luton or Lee.  That’s when we broke his – he broke his eggs, so we got him.  That’s – at that time Memphis was voting half and half, mostly them black folks was Republican until Mr. Sugarmon went to the Democratic Club, in effect.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And they’ve been voting Democrat ever since.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah, that was one of the things I wondered about was how influential George W. Lee was and the Lincoln League as compared to the Shelby County Democratic Club.
Jennie Betts:
He was – he was very – once the Democratic Club got organized and we got in the neighborhood he was just there.

Interviewer:
The Lincoln League declined and he declined in influence.

[1:03:00]
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So the Shelby County Democratic Club sounds like became a real powerhouse.

Jennie Betts:
It was a powerhouse.  Shelby County Democratic Club drew more young folks.  And he didn’t have anything but some old people with him.  Yeah.

Interviewer:
Yeah, okay.  So there was a generational gap as well.

Jennie Betts:
Right, right, right, um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Did – you said you were involved with the sit-in movement.  Was there any sort of generational gap between the youngest students who were involved with that and then leaders like the Smiths and Russell Sugarmon and so forth?  Did any of the people who – like students, feel that the adult leaders at the NAACP had to be – had to push more or be more militant in their actions?
Jennie Betts:
Unh-unh.
Interviewer:
No?  Okay.

Jennie Betts:
No.  

[1:04:00]
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
No, we – it was pretty much organized well.  We used the college student, no high school students.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
And the reason being we – I think they felt that we was more – should have been more mature.  And I felt thing would have got out of hand with high school students.

Interviewer:
Yeah, why did you decide to sit in the library?

Jennie Betts:
Well, it wasn’t nothing in it.  So I went – I wanted to – I was in college and you just couldn’t find anything in the black library that we needed.  We didn’t have computers as we have now.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And we had a hard time trying to go to –
[1:05:00]


– could go to the library and get your – do your lesson but you can’t do it – now you can.  But then you couldn’t do it.  Wasn’t nothing in our – the black library.  The one I sit in, everything I wanted.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
But I was arrested from the library.  Yeah, you got to get your work and all that stuff out on the – it was just – I hate to think about it but it’s just wrong.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  What happened after you got arrested?

Jennie Betts:
Went back and got – went back down there and got in jail again, same day, five times one day.
Interviewer:
Five times?  So they would go and get you out of jail and then you would go back and sit-in again?  [Laughter]  That must be a record, five times in one day.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Wow.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.  Five times.

Interviewer:
Wow, and then they moved you to being an observer.

[1:06:00]
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, and then ______ ______.

Interviewer:
Were you involved with any of the picketing at all?

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yes.

Interviewer:
Were you involved with the – I know that there was 18 months movement on Main Street picketing, were you involved?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum, we picketed the newspaper, we picketed the – what did we picket?  We picketed everything, people downtown.
Interviewer:
And I heard there were – during the movement downtown shifts were – or maybe elsewhere, too, shifts of – 

Jennie Betts:
We had shifts, yeah.

Interviewer:
– where you had to picket.

Jennie Betts:
And the older folks helped, too.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  

Jennie Betts:
And the adults helped, children’s.  We had shifts.  We more or less picketed in the afternoon because we be in school.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
The adults take it in the mornings like that.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And people would come by, so they want to go and pay they bill – 

[1:07:00]


– we tell them, “Mail it, don’t cross us.  Mail it, don’t cross.”

Interviewer:
Oh, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Now, I’m gonna tell you now it wasn’t as then but a lady came out, she said she wanted to pay her bill and when she came out she had a bag, grocery bag.
Interviewer:
What?  Oh, grocery bag?

Jennie Betts:
And then somebody grabbed that bag.  One of the students – I forget who grabbed that bag, and then another one came out and she had put her bag down in her clothes.

Interviewer:
Really?

Jennie Betts:
We could tell it.  We didn’t say anything to her.
Interviewer:
Why did the student grab the bag because the lady – 

Jennie Betts:
Because she wasn’t supposed to be doing anything but going and paying her bill, not buying something.  We didn’t want her to buy.

Interviewer:
Oh, and this is a black person who went in?  Oh, okay.
[1:08:00]


Because also I remember Mr. Sugarmon telling me that you had like cameras where you could take pictures of people who came in who were black as a way of intimidating people from going and buying and not who were – for not participating in the boycott?
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
What did you do with the pictures?
Jennie Betts:
I didn’t never take any pictures.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
But some did.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Do you know what they did with the pictures?

Jennie Betts:
I imagine ______ ______ who got them.

Interviewer:
Who does?

Jennie Betts:
Some of these photographers really got them.  I imagine they got them.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum, because I saw my picture somewhere –

Interviewer:
Huh.

Jennie Betts:
– marching.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I forgot, I saw it at school.

Interviewer:
Oh, Ernest Withers, yeah.
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, I saw it at school.  I don’t know what he did – where it come from.  I say, “Oooh, I looks funny on here.”

Interviewer:
Yeah, and what I’ve –

[1:09:00]


– learned, too, is that there was this network where – well, as you said, the NAACP members, or the Shelby County Democratic members and that – to be informed of when you had this 18 month boycott going on the organization took place with the same sort of precinct structure.  So the precinct clubs were involved with organizing the movement was a structure.

Jennie Betts:
Right, um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Would you say – what would you say – would you say that the ’59 event really ______ the black community momentum in terms of wanting to engage in political and protest activity, and if that really woke them up?
Jennie Betts:
I think it did.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I think it did.

Interviewer:
And then the sit-ins right after that seemed to really – 

Jennie Betts:
Right, um-hum.

Interviewer:
– be even something more that caused you to be more publicized and – 

Jennie Betts:
Right.

Interviewer:
– engage in direct action.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So it really started with – 

[1:10:00]


– the ’59 ______ - 
Jennie Betts:
Right.

Interviewer:
– just the sit-ins, sure.  Let me see what other questions I had.  

Jennie Betts:
You’ve got lots.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  I’ve been doing quite a few interviews, so it’s good I can do a lot of it from memory by now, but I still write them down.  Oh, did you go to the Freedom Rally when Martin Luther King, Jr. came and spoke?

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
What was that like?

Jennie Betts:
It was nice, but it was kind of dangerous.  I had fear for his life.

Interviewer:
For King’s life?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
What made you fearful?  Why were you fearful?

[1:11:00]
Jennie Betts:
It - one thing, his speech.  His last speech, it was something.
Interviewer:
Oh, the mountaintop, the prophetic, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was something.  Then the first time he was supposed to march it was March 28th and I never seen in my life was having that much snow.  And that snow was gone when the evening when dark came.

Interviewer:
When who came?

Jennie Betts:
He was supposed to come – see, we couldn’t march because of the snow.

Interviewer:
Oh, oh.  So you were involved with the marching with the sanitation strike –

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
– and so forth?

Jennie Betts:
And see, the march that – and then he did march on – marched later and it broke out in that big riot, you remember that?

Interviewer:
Just that I’ve heard.

[1:12:00]


Were you marching that – 
Jennie Betts:
I was marching that evening, but everyone was running from everyone.  Blacks was running from whites, whites was running from black.  We didn’t know who was who.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It was – tore down Beale Street – they tore down Beale Street.  People was running by with bolts of cloth, mannies.
Interviewer:
What did you say last?
Jennie Betts:
Mannies, ______ or these dresses you see in the store, they just grabbed – don’t grab the dress; just grab the whole thing, run on down the street with it.

Interviewer:
With a mannequin?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Huh.  Well, that must have been bizarre.

Jennie Betts:
Oh, it was something.

Interviewer:
Huh.

Jennie Betts:
And that’s when we had the Black Power boys, the militant boys.  Oh, they was something.

Interviewer:
Huh.  What did they do?

[1:13:00]
Jennie Betts:
They was in the march.  They did not get with us at the – in the beginning of the march, they stood on the side and wait until we got around town and that’s when they broke in there and started violence.

Interviewer:
Oh, I see.  

Jennie Betts:
It was something.

Interviewer:
What was the impact of King’s death, like, on the black community of Memphis and on your political activity?

Jennie Betts:
The impact was that we always – most blacks said the City Council they could have went on and give them the $0.15 they was asking for when they ended up giving it to them.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.  Yeah.  Sugarmon – Mr. Sugarmon said that it did serve – that people it was like a heart attack for the black community.
Jennie Betts:
It was.

[1:14:00]
Interviewer:
Yeah, and that it really – after that the Shelby County Democratic Club didn’t engage in as much political activity.

Jennie Betts:
That’s when we started going down, um-hum.

Interviewer:
When you started what?

Jennie Betts:
That’s when we – after that we didn’t engage in that much political activities.

Interviewer:
Okay, so that really served to ______ the decline.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
It seemed like before, too, that there were problems going on with the Democratic Club where there were a lot of schisms and people were wanting to have power for themselves.  Is that – 
Jennie Betts:
Yes, that’s true.  There was peoples wanted to have power.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
For they own personal reason.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
And that served to break up the unity – 

Jennie Betts:
Right, um-hum.

Interviewer:
– of the club?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Where did the funding come from for the –
[1:15:00]


– for campaigns, for the Shelby County Democratic Club, so forth?
Jennie Betts:
We would raise lots of it ourselves through the precincts.

Interviewer:
What were some of the fundraisers you did?

Jennie Betts:
We sold dinners.

Interviewer:
Sold what?

Jennie Betts:
Dinners.

Interviewer:
Dinners?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
That was some of them.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And we had banquets, we ______ ______ ______ ______.

Interviewer:
Did you go to the Freedom Banquet at all when Daisy Bates spoke?
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
What was that like?

Jennie Betts:
It was nice.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
______ ______ to be, and – but civil rights banquets always make you reminisce back.
Interviewer:
Did – one of the things, too, I noticed, looking at the literature was this campaign of O.Z. Evers and Elihue –

[1:16:00]


– Stanback at that time, what did people think about their campaign?  I thought they weren’t with the volunteer ticket.
Jennie Betts:
Well, they – peoples felt that they was in it for what they could get out of it.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
Didn’t feel they was real.  I don’t know that to be true but – 
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
 – O.Z.  I know he never won anything.

Interviewer:
So they didn’t take the campaign so seriously?

Jennie Betts:
No, they didn’t take those serious at all.

Interviewer:
Yeah, okay.  It seems, too, that with them – so I looked at their coverage and it was a lot of – it seemed kind of exaggerated, some of the things that they were saying.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, there was lots of exaggeration in there.

Interviewer:
Yeah, about giving hundreds – I mean, I know people gave a lot of speeches but just one number seemed inflated.  Some of the rhetoric, too, I found with people who – in the papers and people speaking at – 

[1:17:00]


– campaign rallies for like, the struggle or something with the election that all the world is going to know about.  Did people really believe that or was that more kind of lofty rhetoric?
Jennie Betts:
I think they just a little mixed on that one.  I don’t know.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Sure, sure.  Let’s see, do you – I thought, too, that a lot of the candidates made television appearances during that time.  Do you remember anything about that at all?

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, some of them did make – I remember it, but we didn’t have the money to get on television.

[1:18:00]
Interviewer:
Yeah.  How many people came to your precinct club – were involved with your precinct club?

Jennie Betts:
We had about 30 or 40.

Interviewer:
Thirty or forty who were involved?  Okay.  And then there were block clubs?

Jennie Betts:
Block club and precinct’s the same.

Interviewer:
The same thing?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Okay.  And how involved were children and youth in terms of like the ’59 campaign, people who were younger than you at the time?

Jennie Betts:
Well, we had a few childrens that was involved with – some were scared to put the childrens out there because we felt it was an adult situation.

Interviewer:
Oh, um-hum.  When you engaged in the sit-in movement –

[1:19:00]


– did your family at all experience any sort of repercussions of that?  I know that – I’ve learned that some of the sit-ins, people who did sit-ins like their mother or father would lose their job, that they experienced ______ ______.

Jennie Betts:
Yes, mines didn’t – my parents didn’t lose their job because they was living in the – 

Interviewer:
In Henning?

Jennie Betts:
– living in Henning and they owned what they lived in – where they lived.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
Now, I did have a friend that her parents lost theirs because her mother lived on the plantation and she had to go.

Interviewer:
Sure.  
Jennie Betts:
But my parents did not – wasn’t pleased with me participating.  But – 

Interviewer:
Oh, um-hum.

[1:20:00]
Jennie Betts:
– I did.  I went on and did what I wanted to.
Interviewer:
Yeah, what did your parents do for a living?

Jennie Betts:
They was farmers but he – my father had his own farm.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  What did he raise or farm?

Jennie Betts:
Soybeans and cotton.
Interviewer:
Sure.  How connected was the Memphis movement with national civil rights efforts?  How – were you inspired by people like King or was it more something that was locally driven?

Jennie Betts:
We more or less did our thing locally.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Lots of people want to give King credit for the movement in Memphis, he did not start the movement and we started it.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  Yeah.  Was the – was SNCC involved at all in Memphis?
Jennie Betts:
Who?

Interviewer:
The Student Nonviolent Coordinating Committee.

Jennie Betts:
Yes, so much later on.
[1:21:00]
Interviewer:
Like when did they begin their involvement in Memphis?

Jennie Betts:
I remember them but the involvements really just came out of Owens College and Le Moyne College.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
So there was SNCC here but it wasn’t so influential?

Jennie Betts:
Unh-unh.  Because our folks came out of those colleges.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That’s where we was going.  I don’t – I heard tell them but I don’t know that him doing anything in Memphis.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  What about the Southern Christian Leadership Council?  Was that here at all?

Jennie Betts:
Well, I heard tell of a certain increase of that organization after we got started.  And to me they wasn’t that involved in the – it was – Southern Leadership Christian Conference, King was the organization.  That’s where I felt.

Interviewer:
Right, right.

[1:22:00]


Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
It wasn’t an organization, just the preacher.
Interviewer:
Yeah, and they had their affiliate then I think if Henry Bunton was, like, involved with the Southern Christian Leadership Council, but yeah.  So it was the students, NAACP, the Democratic Club here.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah, that’s right.

Interviewer:
Did you keep both politicians, black and white, that you endorsed and ended up winning office accountable?

Jennie Betts:
Very much so.

Interviewer:
How did you do that?

Jennie Betts:
Well, when they did something that they promised that they was gonna do and didn’t do, we told them that.

Interviewer:
Okay.  And what did you threaten that you wouldn’t vote for them in the next election if they didn’t do that?

Jennie Betts:
We didn’t threaten them, we just said, “We’ll see you.”  

Interviewer:
You said what?

Jennie Betts:
“See you at the poll.”

Interviewer:
Oh, “See you at the poll.”  Yeah, yeah.  Right.

Jennie Betts:
But we –
[1:23:00]


– all in all we had some – got some good candidates through the Democratic Club.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And Al Gore, Sr. was a good – his work is here now.  You can – he did lots for the community.

Interviewer:
Who were some of the other politicians that you thought did a lot of good work for the black community that you had endorsed through the Shelby County Democratic Club?

Jennie Betts:
Al Gore was one of them.  Bobby – not no Bobby Kennedy, Clinton, not Clinton, Clement.
Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
Bob Clement.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And ______ ______.  That’s about the last one we endorsed.

Interviewer:
Who was it?

Jennie Betts:
______ ______.

[1:24:00]
Interviewer:
Oh, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
That’s the last one.

Interviewer:
What about local politicians?
Jennie Betts:
That I felt that’s made a difference?

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Bill Farris, Gerald Patterson, Fred Davis, Russell Sugarmon, A.W. Willis, ______ T. Lockhart.
Interviewer:
H.T. Lockhart? 

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.  And ______ ______, Maxine Smith, Jesse Turner, did I mention him?

Interviewer:
No.

Jennie Betts:
Jesse, Sr., that was the Godfather, he would do this.

Interviewer:
Um-hum.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
There are some people that say the desegregation movement in Memphis was peaceful and voluntary, what –

[1:25:00]


– would you say in response to that assessment?
Jennie Betts:
It was pretty good.  It was pretty much peaceful involvement.  Only thing that I felt we didn’t – I just felt we could have went on to integrate the school without the court order like – and I didn’t call it – once the judge say do it, we did it.  But – 

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
– we had to be forced to do it.  And some place they didn’t have to be forced to do it, they just went on and did it.
Interviewer:
The students who were involved with the sit-in movement, had many of them been involved with previous civil rights activity like working for political campaigns?

Jennie Betts:
______ on the Democrat Club and something like that.

Interviewer:
Pardon?

Jennie Betts:
The Democrat Club, that’s all that had been involved.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.  

Jennie Betts:
That’s all that had been involved.

Interviewer:
How many of them would you say were involved with the Democratic Club with the ’59 election?

[1:26:00]
Jennie Betts:
Practically all of them.
Interviewer:
Really?  And then they later went on and ______ ______?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Did they talk at all about how that was inspiring to them, the ’59 election?

Jennie Betts:
Unh-unh.

Interviewer:
No?  Okay.

Jennie Betts:
No, I hadn’t talked to anyone about it.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah, sure.  I think one final question, what do you think should be done now about the increasing – or not increasing, but the continuing problems among whites and blacks?
Jennie Betts:
I think we need to come together a little more.  Now some of us are together, some are not.
Interviewer:
Right.

Jennie Betts:
For me I have no problems.  But – 

[1:27:00]


– some people never have lived in a black and white involvement, maybe that’ll help.  Then when you go to college you have black and white professors, maybe that’ll help.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And see – 

Interviewer:
Diversity.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Because I don’t have any problem with black and white.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I just wish we could come a little more closer with black and white.

Interviewer:
Sure.

Jennie Betts:
And I see us breaking down.  I see the blacks doing their part and I see we doing our part.

Interviewer:
And I just thought of something else.  What did you do on the Membership Committee of the NAACP?

Jennie Betts:
Oh, get out and solicit memberships.

[1:28:00]


The $30.00 memberships that I give the black memberships and my work shows up at the convention, because this year I’ve been notified, I mean, the members – the 100 Club membership in the Golden – on the million dollar club.
Interviewer:
Oh, congratulations.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.  And they have a lunch and then we have all those names printed.

Interviewer:
Yeah.  How do you go about getting memberships?

Jennie Betts:
Just ask people.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And I’ll ask anybody, I’ll ask a white person ______ the black.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
I got white members I have ______ ______.  Yeah, we have white members, just ask them.  People want to be asked.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
They feel important when you ask them will they join up ______.

Interviewer:
Sure.

[1:29:00]


Is there anything else that we haven’t talked about or anything else you’d like to add?  Have I missed – you know, I’m trying to construct a story of looking at the ’59 election, is there anything that, you know, that you would add, ______ ______ ______ ______?

Jennie Betts:
Well, the – did anyone in any interview tell you that Memphis was the largest branch in the United States?

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  Right.

Jennie Betts:
And we have the largest ______ of young people from the United States.

Interviewer:
Oh, do you?  Okay.

Jennie Betts:
But that’s the results of hard work out in the street.  You can’t do that at home.  You have to get out there and do it.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
The grassroots work.

Jennie Betts:
Right, grassroots work.

Interviewer:
Yeah. 

Jennie Betts:
And I just enjoy writing memberships.  Yeah.

[1:30:00]
Interviewer:
Yeah.  Anything else you want to add ______ ______?

Jennie Betts:
Unless you dig – probe some more out of me I think I’m done talked out.
Interviewer:
One question was when I talked to Mrs. Wheeler this morning she did mention that they’re – she did receive some white support in the electoral activities that she was engaged in.  Did you run across any supportive whites at all?

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
You’d be surprised.

Interviewer:
Huh.  What sort of support did they give?

Jennie Betts:
Whites supports blacks, even in Memphis.  Some people say they don’t, but they do.  I won’t let nobody say whites will not support a black candidate.  They will, just according to who it is.
Interviewer:
Yeah.  What about even in the – 
[1:31:00]

– you know, ’59 campaign?  Were there – 
Jennie Betts:
I wouldn’t be surprised.  I think some black – I think some whites, like Ann Schaeffer, I believe – 
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum, they supported – and I think they knew what they were doing, they didn’t accidentally pull the lever, they pulled it because they wanted to pull it.

Interviewer:
Right, right.  Was that part of your work, too, was instructing people how to operate voting machines?

Jennie Betts:
Oh, yes, I did that at church – at a church convention, how to operate it, especially the new ones that we have now.

Interviewer:
Okay.  And often people will say, you know, and I think you mentioned it, too, they’ll refer to something as 14-2 or 14-3, what does that mean?
Jennie Betts:
A 14 is the ward and 2 is the precinct.

Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Whereas right here is 79-1.  This is ward 79 –

[1:32:00]


– and precinct 2.
Interviewer:
Okay.  How many precincts were typically in a ward?

Jennie Betts:
How many precincts in a ward?

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
One.

Interviewer:
One precinct in a ward?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Sometimes there’s fundamental things I hear them thrown around so much but I just think, “What exactly is meant by that?”  And single-shotting, that referred – what did that refer to?

Jennie Betts:
What the – precinct is nothing but a – your surrounding neighbors, that’s all it is.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And we had us in and I see now we have Night Out here.  We have Night Out in this community on – the first Tuesday in August will be Night Out in Memphis.  And I think that’s become nationwide, isn’t it?
Interviewer:
Is what?
Jennie Betts:
Isn’t that nationwide?

Interviewer:
Night Out?

[1:33:00]


I don’t know.  I haven’t heard of it, actually.

Jennie Betts:
Well, we have Night Out in this community.

Interviewer:
What happens with it?

Jennie Betts:
We – people come, we bring – this is what we do on this end, we bring our lawn chairs out and we have the police department out, the Mayor and this year we gonna have some candidates because we’ll be lots of folks.


And then each house – each person in the house will pay $6.00, that’s what will get the food.
Interviewer:
Oh, okay.

Jennie Betts:
If you got children just pay $3.00.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
So we have our refreshment and Mr. ______ does our hamburger cooking.  He cooks the hamburgers.  He starts for – he start manning his hamburger on Thursday.  And it’s a nice experience.  We be a lot, about 300, 400 people right in this cove.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

[1:34:00]
Jennie Betts:
And they fire department come out, the light, gas and water come out, the burglar alarm folks come out, trying to sell some burglar alarms.  It’s good time.  All the candidates, the policemen they love to come up here because we have some good food.
Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
And I don’t think they got that many police in this precinct, but they come right over here, but we tell them to come on.  Come on and get them some food, it don’t matter.

Interviewer:
Yeah. 

Jennie Betts:
We’d rather bring out pans back in the house than bring the food back in the house.  So that’s something we’ve – it originated from ______ ______.  To me it’s nothing but a precinct – another name for a precinct ______.

Interviewer:
Yeah, yeah.  But here you do see some of the continuing civic involvement.
Jennie Betts:
Yeah, um-hum.

Interviewer:
Even though it – 

Jennie Betts:
See, those ______ ______ we got award for being – our organization in this area here.

[1:35:00]
Interviewer:
For being – 

Jennie Betts:
Organized.  We organized.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
In downtown they know we organized because they tried to put a church right down here where you see a big house.  We went to court.

Interviewer:
Oh.

Jennie Betts:
We did not want a church.  Not that we have against church, we didn’t want a church in our neighborhood –

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
– because they’d be all up in the yard.  They won’t even ask you.  But it’s lots of things going on.

Interviewer:
Yeah.

Jennie Betts:
People’s involved now they own way, but they still involved.

Interviewer:
Yeah, is this Night Out is there – is this the work of a neighborhood?  Well, it’s national thing, but is there a neighborhood association that you’re active in?
Jennie Betts:
We call – yes, I don’t actively – but the White Haven Council.

Interviewer:
Okay.  Of the neighborhood association?

Jennie Betts:
That’s what it’s – yeah.

Interviewer:
That’s the neighborhood association?

Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
The White Haven Council?

Jennie Betts:
Yeah.

Interviewer:
And – 
[1:36:00]


– well, the neighborhood associations, were they basically the same Civic Clubs?
Jennie Betts:
Um-hum.

Interviewer:
Okay.

Jennie Betts:
Yes.

Interviewer:
Were they called Civic Clubs and then they became called Neighborhood Associations?

Jennie Betts:
I really don’t know how they got started, and I guess they was going on –

[End of Audio]
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